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The Salem Presbyterian Church is a handsomely detalled and well
proportioned Greek Revival temple-form structure fronted by a slightly
projecting Yonic portico in antis. The original portion of the building
measures 40' X 80' and the deep red brickwork is laid in five-course
common bond with Flemish variation. The bays of both the front and sides
are framed by paneled Doric pilasters which support a deep Ionic entablaturg
surrounding the building. The tall windows of both the front and sides are
hung with two sets of double-hung sash with each sash containing ten lights,
The windows are surrounded by symmetrical molded trim with turned corner
blocks. Above each window is a wide lintel with Greek fret motifs in the
style of Asher Bemjamin.

The church's pedimented gable end facade is interrupted by a belfry
set on the projecting portico. The belfry has a paneled base with scrolled
consoles at each side. The middle portion of the belfry is square and has
coupled Doric pilasters framing a single louvred opening on each face, A
spire topped by a copper ball originally rose from this center section but
it was removed in 1885-6 and replaced by a mansard roof.  The wmansard roof
was removed in 1928 and replaced by the present octagonal domed lantern.
Although more Georgian than Greek Revival, the lantern blends well with the
original architecture.

The church is entered through a handsome frontispiece which has
details based on plates in Owen Biddle's Young Carpenter's Assistant. Its
double doors are framed with paneled architrave trim and long ridged panels.
The doors are set between paneled Doric pilasters supporting a Doric
entablarure. Set on the entablature is a scrolled blocking course. Lancet
panels are at either end of the blocking course while in the center is a
chell motif,

The interior originally had a slave gallery around three sides, buf
the side portions were removed after the Civil War, Also the high pulpit
was lowered and the church lengthened about twenty feet at the pulpit end.
In 1870 a chapel building was erected to the west of the church and was
used for Bible classes and other meetings. The chapel was taken down in
1914, and some of its bricks were used to build the Sunday school addition
on the rear of the church. This addition took the form of pedimented
transcepts, and employed architectural motifs found in the original portion,
Further additions were made to the rear in 1856.

The church is set on a prominent intersection on Salem's Main
Street, and is an important architectural landmark for the downtown section,
The simple churchyard is planted with evergreen shrubbery and shade trees.
A simple iron fence surrounds the yard.
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The Salem Presbyterian Church stands as one of the Roanoke
Valley's most beautiful examples of Greek Revival architecture, and
is a principal landmark of downtown Salem. The handsomely detailed
building demonstrates an unexpectedly self-assured handling of Greek
architectural elements combined with a well-balanced proportional
system. The master builder has not been determined but it seems likely
that it was Benjamin Deyerle who built many of the finer Greek Revival
plantation houses in the area. The church's woodwork is attributed to
Gustavia D. Sedon, a well-known Roanoke County carpenter. Most of the
architectural details are based on plates in ante-bellum builders'
handbooks such as those of Asher Benjamin and Owen Biddle.

The Presbyterians organized in Salem in 1831, The local
congregation outgrew their original church and began construction of
the present building in 1851. Dedication services for the new building
were held August 8, 1852, The church was built primarily with slave
labor, and its bricks were burnt on the site, TIts approximate cost was
$4,500.00, and the entire amount was paid before the dedication service.
The building continues to function as the city's chief Presbyterian
church,

C.L.




{9. MAJOR BIBLIOGRAPHICAL REFERENCES .. L R
Couper, William, History of the Shenandoah Valley, Vol, II ( N. Y., 1952).
Roanoke Architecture, unpublished catalogue of an architectural exhibit held
in 1969, in archives of Virginia Historic Landmarks Commission.
"Salem and the Salem Presbyterian Church," unpublished ms,by Cathy Tinaglia
in archives of Virginia Historie Landmarks Commission.
L : _ :
[10. GEOGRAPHICAL DATA . " « .
LATITUDE AND LONGITUDE COORDINATES LATITUDE AND LONGITUIDE COORDINATES
CEFINING A RECTANGLE LOCATING THE ProcerTy | O DEFINING THe CENTER POINT OF A nOPERTY
R __OF LESS THMAN TEN ACRES _
CORNER LATITUDE LONGITUDE LATITUDE LONGLTUDE
Degrees Minutes Seconds |[Degress Minutes Saconds Degrees Minutes Seconds | Degrees Minutes Saconds
NW =] ) » Q ) » ] ’ - o ] -»
el I S B E L RN [
SE a r » -] ) »
S Q L = [~} . L]

ARPROXIMATE ACREAGE CF MOMINATED PROPERTY: 1ESS than one acre

ILIST ALL STATES AND COUNTIES FOR PROPERTIES OVERLAPPING STATE OR COUNTY BOUMDARIES

STETE: COUDE COUNTY CODE
STATE: CCODE COUI?ITY'. CODE
STATE: . CODE COUNTY: CODE
STATE: ) CODE COUNTY: CODE

"ORM PREPARED BY

NAME AND T)TLE;

Virginia Historic Landmarks Commission Staff

QRGANIZATION DATE

Virginia Historic Landmarks Commission . June, 1974

STREET AND NUMBER:

221 Governor Street

CITY OR TOWNM: STATE COoDRE

Richmond Virginia

{‘ 12::

 REGISTER YERIFICATION

TE LIAISON OFFICER CERTIFICATION

As the designated State Liaison Officer for the Na-
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I hereby certify that this property is included in the

National Register.
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Date
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